
AGENDA

Public Document Pack



Attleborough Development Partnership
Tuesday, 20th June, 2017

Page(s)
herewith

1. AGENDA PACK 3 - 11



 

ATTLEBOROUGH DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 

20 June 2017 @ 2.00pm 

Attleborough Town Hall, Queen’s Square, Attleborough 

 

AGENDA 

 
 
 

Item 
No. 

Subject Lead* Timing 

1 Welcome TM 2.00 – 2.05 

2 Minutes of last meeting CB 2.05 – 2.10 

3 Matters Arising CB 2.10 – 2.15 

4 Feedback from Ptarmigan / JTP Workshop and 
Outline Planning Application Update 

Ptarmigan 
Rep 

2.15 – 2.30 

5 Consultation on Growth Fund Proposals  RD 2.30 – 2.50 

6 Project Sub-Group Priorities discussion PM 2.50 – 3.15 

7 Neighbourhood Plan / Community Sub Group 
Update 

TP / TM 3.15 – 3.30 

8 Any Other Business  3.30 – 3.50 
 
TM – Tim Mills 
CB – Chris Batten  
PM – Phil Mileham 
TP - Tony Perkins 
RD – Richard Doleman 

13

Agenda Item 1



The Attleborough Development Partnership 
Minutes 

Tuesday 25 April 2017 2.00pm – 4.00pm 
Attleborough Town Hall, Queens Square, Attleborough, Norfolk, NR17 2AF 

Chair: Chris Batten 
Attendees: 
Board Members  
Richard Doleman (RD)(Norfolk County Council), Tim Mills (TM)(Breckland District 
Council), Tristan Ashby (TA)(Breckland District Council), Gina Lopez (GL) (Attleborough 
Town Council), Joe Hayes (JH)(Ptarmigan Land), Iain Dunnett (ID)( NALEP), Rona 
Boggia (RB)(Old Buckenham Parish Council), Marcia Solloway-Brown (MSB) Besthorpe 
Parish Council, Caroline Money (CM) (NCC) 
Officers:  Andy Prior (AP) 
Minutes: 
Julie Britton (Breckland District Council) 
Apologies:  Colin Kilby (Business Representative), Chris Hey (Norfolk County Council 
Education), Tony Perkins (TP)(Attleborough Town Council), Alec Byrne (AB)(Norfolk 
County Council), Jeremy Burton (JB)(Business Representative (Substitute Member) 
Charles Campion (Ptarmigan Land) 

Item 

1 & 2 Minutes & Actions Arising 
The Minutes were agreed. 
Actions Arising: 

• The Minutes from the meeting held between the Town
Council, Breckland District Council and Norfolk County
Council were awaited.

• TM to ask Helen McAleer (BDC) to circulate the letter to the
Board Members that was sent to NCC  from the Chairman
on behalf of the ADP.

3. Website 
AP provided Members with a mock version of the ADP website.  
Comments/suggestions were welcomed.  If approved, the new 
website could be launched in a matter of weeks. 
The Chairman felt that the Partnership should have a more pro-
active role and access to the website should be allowed.  AP advised 
that a direct point of contact to supply the content would be required. 
It would also be possible for one or two Officers from BDC to be 
administrators/editors. Liaise with AP over specific requirements. 
Images/photographs would be provided by the Town Council. 
Hosting of the website would be provided by Breckland Council. 

CB 

2 4



A suggestion to change the colour of the boxes to the same colour 
as the ADP badge was agreed. 

4. Ptarmigan / JTP Workshop and Outline Planning Application 
Update 
JH presented apologies from Charles Campion. JH was a colleague 
of Craig Neilson’s and had been doing a great deal of work with 
Attleborough.  Feedback on the work carried out over the past two 
months was provided and a report would be issued on the workshop 
session that was held on 31 March 2017.   
The planning application would be submitted in July 2017 and a 
further event was being held on 6 June 2017. 
A Loan Facility meeting was held on 27 March 2017 and a response 
was still waited following the submission of the Heads of Terms. 
EB felt rewarded as Ptarmigan had listened to all recommendations 
and comments. 

 

5. Update on Growth Fund Proposals and future engagement 
RD provided the meeting with a presentation on Attleborough Town 
Centre improvements – progress and next steps and what was 
expected to happen from this point onwards - not what had 
happened. 
(The presentation is attached for information). 
Four points were covered: 

• Growth Deal Funding 
• Surrogate Street – 2 way 
• Other schemes 
• Public consultation 

Under the funding profile, 2 bids had been submitted for 
Attleborough but only one had been successful and just over £4.5m 
of funding had been secured for town centre measures; however, it 
was noted that if the work was not progressed/delivered the funding 
would be retracted. 
NCC had listened to all proposals and had agreed that the 2 way in 
Surrogate Street would provide a genuine improvement.  Many 
questions had been put forward in relation to improvements to the 
south of the street and in terms of thinking; the latest iteration was 
that there should be no traffic signals.  This proposal had been 
broadly welcomed by Ptarmigan; other alternatives/options that had 
been considered had not been as popular. 
The estimated timelines were shown of the Surrogate Street scheme 
(see presentation). 
RD stated that there many other schemes/suggestions that were yet 
to be explored (see presentation) which had been taken from 
existing evidence and he asked how these should be taken forward.  
TA had noted that the £4.5m was time limited and asked how 
confident that this money would be spent in the timeframe.  RD 

 

35



explained that the design team were already aware and an 
agreement needed to be reached on implementation. 

RB asked if NCC would have anything ready for Ptarmigan’s 
workshop on 6 June 2017.  RD assured Members that everything 
had to go through the proper process and if any information was 
available this would be fed into the workshop.  RB felt that such 
information should be made available on an information board so 
that the public were aware.  RD acknowledged these comments and 
would feedback to NCC. 

6. Project sub-group Priorities discussion 
This item was an open discussion on any partnership generated 
projects (excluding highways). 
Unfortunately, due to unforeseen circumstances, the spreadsheet 
containing the list of all projects, as discussed at the last meeting, 
was not available.   
RD asked if there was a project that was felt to be more important 
that should be moved to the top of the list.  EB pointed out that the 
support and help from Ptarmigan had been outstanding and felt that 
the same due diligence should remain for these projects.  TM 
recognised that many aspirations were already in the NHP but 
reminded Members that the ADP could be the solution to move 
some of these schemes forward. 
ID urged Members to bring these schemes forward sooner rather 
than later. 

 
 
 

7. Neighbourhood Plan / Community sub-group Update 
The Neighbourhood Plan had been submitted for consultation; 
following consultation, it would then follow the proper process of 
being presented to Cabinet in May or by a Leader decision 
dependent on timing.  It would then be subject to examination in the 
autumn. The exact timings would be subject to availability of the 
chosen examiner and the time it takes for them to produce their 
report. Following that the outcome of the examination would need to 
be presented through the democratic processes of Breckland 
Council before a referendum was held. If that was successful then 
Breckland Council could “make” the Plan. The process is likely to be 
completed in the first part of 2018. 
TM explained that at the last ADP meeting, Attleborough Town 
Council had expressed the view that the Neighbourhood Planning 
Group should become a Community Sub-Group.  A meeting had 
been held on 23 March 2017 with various representatives and 
potential Terms of Reference had been devised.  
Feedback was sought and a number of comments were put forward 
as follows: 
Under the heading Representatives - it should read school(s).  
Additionally, there was a difference between Academy and NCC run 
schools so a representative was needed for both. 

 
 

4 6



Engagement with younger people was needed e.g. scouts, guides 
etc. 
TM agreed and would ensure that there was an explicit reference to 
younger persons. 
In response to a question in relation to timeframe, Members were 
informed that feedback would be required from ATC and a report 
would be brought to the next meeting of the ADP to enable the 
Community Sub-Group to be set up in June 2017. 

8. Update on new schools development 
Caroline Money (CM) was in attendance as substitute for Chris Hey 
(CH). 
Attleborough Infant and Attleborough Junior Schools would become 
all through primary schools.  The Infant School which was currently 
under construction would become Rosecroft Primary School on a 
new site in London Road - the date for completion was November 
2017.  Rosecroft would accommodate 630 places.   

The Junior School which would be called Attleborough Primary was 
being remodelled and extended – the works for this project was 
being tendered and the completion date was predicted to be March 
2018.  

EB said that she had received an email about a further school being 
built in Attleborough and asked for information on this.  CM 
explained that there was provision for another new school for the 
number of dwellings being built but this was still a long way off. 
However, once the Planning Application had been submitted, further 
discussion on timing would take place. EB pointed out that she had 
seen on a website that the Government had decided that there 
would be a new free school in Attleborough.  CM was grateful for 
this information as she had not been made aware of this website 
and would discuss this further with EB after the meeting. 

 

9. Neighbourhood Plan 
See above. 

 

10. AOB 
None. 

 
 

11. Date of Next Meeting 
The next scheduled meeting would be held on 20 June 2017.   

 

 

57



The Attleborough Development Partnership
Minutes

Tuesday 25 April 2017 2.00pm – 4.00pm
Attleborough Town Hall, Queens Square, Attleborough, Norfolk, NR17 2AF

Chair: Chris Batten

Attendees:
Board Members 
Richard Doleman (RD)(Norfolk County Council), Tim Mills (TM)(Breckland District Council), 
Tristan Ashby (TA)(Breckland District Council), Gina Lopez (GL) (Attleborough Town 
Council), Joe Hayes (JH)(Ptarmigan Land), Iain Dunnett (ID)( NALEP), Rona Boggia 
(RB)(Old Buckenham Parish Council), Marcia Solloway-Brown (MSB) Besthorpe Parish 
Council, Caroline Money (CM) (NCC)

Officers:  Andy Prior (AP)
Minutes:
Julie Britton (Breckland District Council)

Apologies:  Colin Kilby (Business Representative), Chris Hey (Norfolk County Council 
Education), Tony Perkins (TP)(Attleborough Town Council), Alec Byrne (AB)(Norfolk County 
Council), Jeremy Burton (JB)(Business Representative (Substitute Member) Charles 
Campion (Ptarmigan Land)

Item

1 & 2 Minutes & Actions Arising
The Minutes were agreed.

Actions Arising:

 The Minutes from the meeting held between the Town 
Council, Breckland District Council and Norfolk County 
Council were awaited.

 TM to ask Helen McAleer (BDC) to circulate the letter to the 
Board Members that was sent to NCC  from the Chairman 
on behalf of the ADP.

3. Website
AP provided Members with a mock version of the ADP website.  
Comments/suggestions were welcomed.  If approved, the new 
website could be launched in a matter of weeks.

The Chairman felt that the Partnership should have a more pro-
active role and access to the website should be allowed.  AP 
advised that a direct point of contact to supply the content would 
be required.  It would also be possible for one or two Officers from 
BDC to be administrators/editors.

Images/photographs would be provided by the Town Council.

Hosting of the website would be provided by Breckland Council.

A suggestion to change the colour of the boxes to the same colour 

8



as the ADP badge was agreed.

4. Ptarmigan / JTP Workshop and Outline Planning Application 
Update
JH presented apologies from Charles Campion. JH was a 
colleague of Craig Neilson’s and had been doing a great deal of 
work with Attleborough.  Feedback on the work carried out over the 
past two months was provided and a report would be issued on the 
workshop session that was held on 31 March 2017.  

The planning application would be submitted in July 2017 and a 
further event was being held on 6 June 2017.

A Loan Facility meeting was held on 27 March 2017 and a 
response was still waited following the submission of the Heads of 
Terms.

EB felt rewarded as Ptarmigan had listened to all 
recommendations and comments.

5. Update on growth Fund Proposals and future engagement
RD provided the meeting with a presentation on Attleborough 
Town Centre improvements – progress and next steps and what 
was expected to happen from this point onwards - not what had 
happened.

(The presentation is attached for information).

Four points were covered:

 Growth Deal Funding
 Surrogate Street – 2 way
 Other schemes
 Public consultation

Under the funding profile, 2 bids had been submitted for 
Attleborough both had been successful and just over £4.5m of 
funding had been secured for town centre measures; however, it 
was noted that if the work was not progressed/delivered the 
funding would be retracted.

NCC had listened to all proposals and had agreed that the 2 way in 
Surrogate Street would provide a genuine improvement.  Many 
questions had been put forward in relation to improvements to the 
south of the street and in terms of thinking; the latest iteration was 
that there should be no traffic signals.  This proposal had been 
broadly welcomed by Ptarmigan; other alternatives/options that 
had been considered had not been as popular.

The estimated timelines were shown of the Surrogate Street 
scheme (see presentation).

RD stated that there many other schemes/suggestions that were 
yet to be explored (see presentation) which had been taken from 
existing evidence and he asked how these should be taken 
forward.  TA had noted that the £4.5m was time limited and asked 
how confident that this money would be spent in the timeframe.  
RD explained that the design team were already aware and an 

9



agreement needed to be reached on implementation.

RB asked if NCC would have anything ready for Ptarmigan’s 
workshop on 6 June 2017.  RD assured Members that everything 
had to go through the proper process and if any information was 
available this would be fed into the workshop.  RB felt that such 
information should be made available on an information board so 
that the public were aware.  RD acknowledged these comments 
and would feedback to NCC.

6. Project sub-group Priorities discussion
This item was an open discussion on any partnership generated 
projects (excluding highways).

Unfortunately, due to unforeseen circumstances, the spreadsheet 
containing the list of all projects, as discussed at the last meeting, 
was not available.  

RD asked if there was a project that was felt to be more important 
that should be moved to the top of the list.  EB pointed out that the 
support and help from Ptarmigan had been outstanding and felt 
that the same due diligence should remain for these projects.  TM 
recognised that many aspirations were already in the NHP but 
reminded Members that the ADP could be the solution to move 
some of these schemes forward.

ID urged Members to bring these schemes forward sooner rather 
than later.

7. Neighbourhood Plan / Community sub-group Update
The Neighbourhood Plan had been submitted for consultation; 
following consultation, it would then follow the proper process of 
being presented to Cabinet in May or by a Leader decision 
dependent on timing.  It would then be examined by the Planning 
Inspectorate in October to hopefully come into effect by the end of 
2017.

TM explained that at the last ADP meeting, Attleborough Town 
Council had expressed the view that the Neighbourhood Planning 
Group should become a Community Sub-Group.  A meeting had 
been held on 23 March 2017 with various representatives and 
potential Terms of Reference had been devised. 

Feedback was sought and a number of comments were put 
forward as follows:

Under the heading Representatives - it should read school(s).  
Additionally, there was a difference between Academy and NCC 
run schools so a representative was needed for both.

Engagement with younger people was needed e.g. scouts, guides 
etc.

TM agreed and would ensure that there was an explicit reference 
to younger persons.

In response to a question in relation to timeframe, Members were 
informed that feedback would be required from ATC and a report 
would be brought to the next meeting of the ADP to enable the 

10



Community Sub-Group to be set up in June 2017.

8. Update on new schools development
Caroline Money (CM) was in attendance as substitute for Chris 
Hey (CH).

Attleborough Infant and Attleborough Junior Schools would 
become all through primary schools.  The Infant School which was 
currently under construction would become Rosecroft Primary 
School on a new site in London Road - the date for completion was 
November 2017.  Rosecroft would accommodate 630 places.  

The Junior School which would be called Attleborough Primary 
was being remodelled and extended – the works for this project 
was being tendered and the completion date was predicted to be 
March 2018. 

EB said that she had received an email about a further school 
being built in Attleborough and asked for information on this.  CM 
explained that there was provision for another new school for the 
number of dwellings being built but this was still a long way off and 
the arrangements for schools places had already been absorbed; 
however, once the housing had been built talks would commence. 
EB pointed out that she had seen on a website that the 
Government had decided that there would be a new free school in 
Attleborough.  CM was grateful for this information as she had not 
been made aware of this website and would discuss this further 
with EB after the meeting.

9. Neighbourhood Plan
Postponed.

10. AOB
None.

11. Date of Next Meeting
The next scheduled meeting would be held on 20 June 2017.  

11


	Agenda
	1 Agenda Pack
	20170425 ADP Draft Minutes




